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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: L67 1 20WB 1 928PLC093924

DIRECTORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDBRS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the gTnd Annual Report of your
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the

year ended 3 I't March, 2021. The Financial Statements have been prepared in

accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS).

RESULTS

DIVIDEND:

In order to conserye resources in the current uncertain times due to Covid-19 pandemic, the Board has

decided to retain the earnings and does not propose any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has only one class of shares - equity shares of par value {100/- each. Its authorised

share capital as on 31't March, 2021was {35 Lac divided into 35,000 equity shares of {100/- each.

The paid-up equrty capital of the Company stood at {18 Lac as at 3l't March, 2021. During the year

under review, the Company has not issued any shares.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board proposes to transfer <t3.Igl-ac to Reserve Fund pursuant to RBI Guidelines (for Non

Banking Financial Companies (NBFC), and the balance profit is retained in the Profit and Loss

Account.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPAI{Y'S AFFAIRS

Total income during the year under review amounted to T38.48 Lac as against <341.05 Lac in the

preceding year. Profit before tax amounted to (14.98 Lac as against <314J9 Lac in the preceding

year. Profit after tax stood at <68.94 Lac as against <314.79 Lac in the previous year.

The Company continues to remain registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with the Reserve

Bank of India.

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this

report, which affect the financial position of the Company except for any effect of Covid 19 pandemic

which is difficult to assess exactly at this stage.

L

FINANCIAL RESULTS: Rs. in Lakhs

Year ended
31.03.2021

Year ended
31.03.2020

Profit Before Taxation 14.98 314.19

Less : Provision for Current Tax (s3.96) o

Profit After Taxation (Before Other Comprehensive Income) 68.94 314.79

Add : Balance of Profit from Previous year 2,297.15 2.04s.32

Profit available for appropriation 2,366.09 2.360.11

APPROPRIATIONS:
Transfer to Statutory Reserve (as per RBI Guidelines) 13.79 62.96

Balance C.arried to Balance Sheet
(Excludine Other Comprehensive Income)

2,352,30 2,297.15

2,366.09 2,360.11



ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any associate.

PIIBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year, nor does it hold any

deposit as at the end ofthe year.

PARTICULARS OF' LOANS AND GUARANTEES

The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company registered under Chapter IIIB of the Reserve

Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,2013 are not

applicable to the Company.

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Company had not entered into any significantly material contract I anangement I
transactions with related parties, attracting the requirement of disclosure in this report as per

provisions of Section 188 of the Act except those disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements

forming part of this Annual Report. The transactions with the key managerial personnel and

enterprise of which the company is an associate are in the ordinary course of business, are not in
conflict with the Company's interests at large and are intended to further the Company's business

interests. Related Party Disclosures as required under the Listing Regulations is annexed to this

report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and

nature of its business. The Company has appointed internal auditors who review the internal financial

control system. The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the internal auditors and ensures

implementation of their suggestions and improvement. During the year, no reportable material

weakness in the design or operation was observed.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The main identified risks at the Company are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks

and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Risk Management is overseen by the Audit Committee of the

Company on a continuous basis. The Audit Committee ensures that risks to the Company's continued

existence as a going concern and to its development are identified and addressed on timely basis'

Constitution of RiskManagement Committee is not mandatory for the Company as per Regulation 2l
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing

Regulations).

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Articles of
Association, Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra (DIN: 00630475) and Shri Subhas Jajoo (DIN: 00429371),

Directors of the Company retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment' In

accordance with Regulation 17(1A) of the Listing regulations, consent of members is being sought for

continuation of directorship of Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra, who has already attained the age of 75

yoars, by way of special resolution.

The Board recommends their re-appointment / appointment and accordingly items/resolutions seeking

approval of the members for their re-appointments / appointments have been included in the Notice of
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company along with their brief profile'

Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat and Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya continue to be the Independent

Directors of the Company appointed for a period of five years from their respective dates of
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appointment. The Independent Directors have appropriate skill, knowledge and experience in the

business carried on by the Company.

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the

criteria oi Independ"*. ur prescribed under the companies Act,2013 and SEBI (Listing obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2Ol5' The Company has practice of conducting

familiarisation program for the independent directors'

Smt. Raj Kamal Devi Bangur, a Director of the company holds 4.03% of the paid-up capital of the

Company.

Shri Ashish Kedia is the Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company'

shri Ghanshyam Mohta is the company Secretary and also designated as compliance officer of the

Company.

The Independent Directors, Directors and Senior Management including the employees have

complied with their ouiigutionr as mentioned under Regulations 25 and26 of the Listing Regulations'

BOARD EVALUATION

The performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees a_nd Individual Directors was conducted

after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as the composition and

structure, effectiveness of processes, functioning etc'

The Independent Directors held a separate meeting, which reviewed the performance of non-

independent directors and the Board as a whole, t6ok into account the views of non-executive

directors and to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the

.un.rg.*"rt and the Board. itr. trO"p.ndent Directors were satisfied with the performance of the

Boarias a whole and timeliness of flow of information'

Some of the key criteria for performance evaluation are:-

P erforrnance evaluation of D irectors :

o Attendance at Board or Committee meetings

o Contribution at Board or Committee meetings'

o Guidance / support to management outside the Board / Committee meetings'

Performance evaluation of Board and Committees:

o Board structure and comPosition
o Degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities

o Bstablishment and delineation of responsibilities to Committees

o Effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning

o Board culture and dYnamics
o Quality of relationship between Board and Management

.E-fficacyofcommunicationwithexternalshareholders.

AI,DITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT

IWs D. K. Chhajer & co., chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No'304138E' who are

Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed by the Company at the Annual General Meeting

(AGM) held on 12; s;p;i{r, irin, to h;id office ior a period of five consecutive years from the

i"irrlr"" "istil 
ecrtr of the Company till the conclusion of 93'd AGM to be held in the year 2022'

The Members are required to fix remuniration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year ending

31't March,2022.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisff the.eligibility i-independence criteria required

under the companies Act, 2013 and ihe cto" of Ethics issued by the Institute of chartered

Accountants of India.
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The report of the Auditors is self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments.

As required by the Listing Regulations, the auditors' certificate on corporate governance is annexed

io this report and forms purt of the annual report. The report does not contain any qualification,

reservation or adverse remark requiring explanation or clarification from the Board'

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2020-21 has been conducted by Shri Mukesh Chaturvedi,

practicing Company Secretary GCS). The Secretarial Audit Report for the fin.ancial year ended 3l't

March, iozl is annexed to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any

qualification, reservation or adverse remark requiring explanation or clarification from the Board.

pursuant to clause 10 of part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, PCS Certificate is annexed to

the Corporate Govemance Report and forms part of the annual report,

COST AUDIT

In terms of provisions of section 148 (1) of the Companies Act,2013 cost audit as specified by the

Central Government is not applicable to the Company'

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to

tt" u,ialt ctmmittee, under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,2073, any instance of fraud

committed against the Company by its officers or employees, and hence the requirement to mention

the same in this report is not applicable.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Six meetings of the Board and One meeting of Independent Directors were held during the year. The

interveninf gap between the meetings ofthe Board was within the period prescribed under the

Companies Act,2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors namely Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat

lChairmany and Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattachirya and a Non Independent Director Shri Subhas Jajoo.

brring the year, all the iecommendations madi by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM

pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act,2073, the Company has established a
.VIGIL MECHANISM' for Directors and Employees to report concems of unethical behavior, actual

or suspected, or violation of Company's ethics poti"y and provide safeguard against victimization of

employees.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat (Chairman),

Shri Tapas Kumar Bhattacharya and Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra.

STAKEIIOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations,

Stakeholders Relationship Committee is duly constiiuted by the Board consisting of Directors Shri

Jagdish prasad Mundra iCtrairman;, Shri S.K. Rathi and Shri Tapas. Kumar Bhattacharya for the

pr"rpor" of attending to investor grievanbes including transfer/transmission of shares of the Company'

t,



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013 and Rules made there under have become applicable to the Company from the financial year

ZO1T-18. The Board had constituted CSR Committee for fonnulating and overseeing the execution of

the Company's CSR Policy. The CSR Committee comprises of two independenl directors and two

non-executive directors namely Shri Arun Prakash Mallawat (Chairman), Shri Tapas Kumar

Bhattacharya, Shri Jagdish Prasad Mundra and Shri Subhas Jajoo. This year the Company was not

required to spend any amount as the average net profits before tax of the previous three financial

years calculatid as per Section 198 of the Companies Act,2013 was negative,

The Annual Report on CSR activities of FY 2020-21with requisite details in the specified fonnat as

required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto

and forms part of this report.

The CSR Policy of the Company is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report. The same is

also available on the website of the Company viz. http://www.western-india.co.in/policies/WICCL:

CSR-Policy.pdf

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board in consultation with the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has framed Policy for

selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for determining

qualificationr, pLiitir" attributes and independence of directors which is annexed hereto and forms

purt of this Report. Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and

other employees is also annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extractof Annual Return as provided under Sectiong2(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed

hereto in the prescribed form and forms part of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE RBGULATORS OR COURTS

OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant & material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would

impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, theBoard of Directors of

the Cornpany hereby states and confirms that:

i) in preparation of the Annual Accounts forthe financial year2020-21 , the applicable accounting

standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any

ii)

iii)

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

and estimates that are reasonabte anO prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that

period;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with tire provisions of the Companies Act,2013 for safeguarding the assets of the

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) they have prepared the Annual Accounts for the period ended 31't March, 2021 on a going

concern basis;
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v)

vi)

they have laid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that suclt

internal financialcontrols are adequate and were operating properly;

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF' EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

None of the employees is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in Rule 5(2) of the

Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 appended to the

Companies Act,20l3.

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act

read with Rule 5(li of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014 as amended is annexed hereto forming part of this report.

coNsERvATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EAR}IING AND OUTGO

Since the Company has no manufacturing activity, disclosures relating to Conservation of Energy and

Technology A6sorption stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,2013 read with

Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, ate not applicable'

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year'

LISTING AGREEMENT & FEE

The Company's shares are presently listed at the Calcutta Stock Elchange Limited and the Company

has executed Listing Agreiment with the said stock exchange. The Company has paid the annual

listing fee to the Stock Exchange upto the financialyeat 2021-22.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations,2015, Corporate Governance Report for fiscal 2021 is annexed hereto

andforms part of this annual report. There are no demat suspense / unclaimed suspense account as on

the date of this Report as required under Schedule V Part F of the Listing Regulations.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, theManagement Discussion and Analysis is set out hereunder and

forms part of this Annual RePort.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, inclusion of Business Responsibility Report as part of the Annual

Report is not applicable to the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is compliant of requirement of Regulation 26(3) of the,SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosurl Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable to the Company by framing Code of

Business Conduct and EthicJ ("code of conduci'). The code of Conduct is applicable to the

employees including directors ofthe Company and is available on the Company's website. All
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employees including directors of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct as

on March 31 ,2021 .

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, monitor and report trading by

insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015. This Policy also includes

code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information, initial
and continual disclosures. The Board reviews the Policy / Code on a need-to-know basis. This Policy

is available on our website.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All new independent directors inducted into the Board attend an orientation program. Fufiher, at the

time of appointment of an independent director, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment
outlining his/her role, functions, duties and responsibilities. The familiarisation program is available
on our website.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

Sexual harassment of a woman at workplace is of serious concern to humanity on the whole. Keeping

in view the problem of sexual harassment the company has framed a policy to prevent incidents of
sexual harassment as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. However, constitution of Internal

Committee as required under the Act is not applicable to tlie Company since the company has less

than 10 employees. Moreover, no cornplaint pertaining to sexual harassment was filed by any woman

during the financial year under repoft, hence no disclosures are applicable. This Policy is available ort

our website.
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and uploaded on its website are as under
Name of the Policy Web link
Policy for seleotion and

appointment of Directors,
Senior Management
including criteria for
determining qualifi cations,
positive attributes and
independence of the
directors

http ://www.western-india.co. infoglici9sA[_!QCL-
Appointnrent_Pol i c),.pdf

Archival Policy for
Website content

http://www.westgrn-india.cg. inlpolicies/WICCL-ArchivaLPol ic),. pdf

Policy on Determination of
Materiality

http://www.western-ind ia.co. in/pol icies/WICC L-
Determ i nati on:o{_Materi al ity. pdf

Familiarisation Program
for Independent Directors

http://www.western-ind ia.co. in/pol icies/WICCL-
Fam il iari sati on*Proglqrrr. pdf

Insider Trading Code http ://www.western-india.co. in/pol icies/WICCL-
Insider_ frading_Code. pdf

Policy for Determining
Material Subsidiary

http ://www.western-ind ia.co. i n/pol icies/W ICC L-
M ateri al%20 S u bsi d iar.v.pdf

Related Parly Transactions
Policy

http://www.western-i nd ia.co. i n/po I icies/W I CC L-
Related:Par1y_Transact iorrs:Pol icy. pdf

Policy relating to
remuneration for the
directors, key managerial
personnel and other
employees

http ://www. westgrn- india. co. in/pol icies/WICCL-
Remunefalion_Pol icy. pdf

Vigil Mechanism and
Whistle Blower Policy

http ://www.western- india. Saj!foeliqgs/lilleEL
Wh i stl e_B lower_Po li cy. pd f

Code
Prohi
Tradi

of Conduct for
bition of Insider
ng

littp:/www.western-
indra.qq.lnlplicies/20170529 WICCL Proliibition of Insider Tradi
ns.Ddf

Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy

http://www.western-india.co. in/pol icies/WICCL-CSR-l'}olic)r.pdf

Prohibition of Sexual
Harassment Policy

http://www.western-ind ia.co. in/po I icies/W I CC L-
Prohibition_oLSexual_Harassment-Pol icy.pdf

POLICIES

In addition to its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, key policies that have been adopted by the

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors place on record their appreciation for the support the Company continues to receive
from its Bankers and Shareholders and acknowledge the valuable contribution from the employees of
the company 

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata

Dated I3tl' August, 2021
Subhas Jajoo T.K. Bhattachatya
DIN: 00429371 DIN: 00711665
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Annexure to the Director'.s. Bepgrt

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Format for disclosure of transactions with related parties as referred to in Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in compliance with

Ind -AS

Details of transactions with related parties:

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 13tl' August, 2021

Subhas Jajoo T.K. Bhattacharya
DIN:00429371 DIN: 00711665
Chairman Director

Nature of
Transactions

Name of related party Description of
Relationship

Amount
(o

Payment of
Remuneration

Mr. Ashish Kedia Key Management Personnel 15,90,6511-

Payment of Rent Shree Capital Services Ltd. Associate of the related
oarty

11,328
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Annexure to the Directors' Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social ResponsibiliW (CSR Activities

1 A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken

The Company aims to focus on environrnent
preservation, spreading education, sports and
supporting needy people of the society for their
overall upliftment. Though its social activities
are to focus primarily on areas surrounding its
operations, which may include people I
programs which may not be so related strictly
considering overall obiectives.

2 The Composition of the CSR Committee CSR Committee comprises of two Independent
Directors and two Non-Executive Directors as

under:
l. Shri A.P. Mallawat - Chairman
2, Shri T,K. Bhattacharya - Member
3, Shri J.P, Mundra - Member
4. Shri Subhas Jaioo - Member

J Average net profit of the company for the last
three financial years

t(53.02) Lac

4 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the
amount as in item 3 above)

The prescribed CSR Expenditure requirement
for tlre FY 2020-21 is NIL. The Company was
thus not required to spend any amount this year.

5 Details of CSR spent during the financial year

a Total amount to be spent for the financial year NIL
b Amount unspent, if any NIL
c Manner in which the amount spent during the

financial year
Not Applicable

6 In case the Company has failed to spend the two
percent ofthe average net profit ofthe last three
financial years or any part thereofl the Company
shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Directors' Report

Not Applicable

7 A responsibility statement of the CSR
Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with
CSR obiectives and Policy of the Company

The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the
implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy
is in cornpliance with CSR objectives and

Policy of the Company.

Place:Kolkata
Date: 13th August, 2021

For Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Director

DIN:00429371

A.P. Mallawat
Chairman of

CSR Committee
DIN: 08209376

fo



Annexure to CSR Report (Point 5(c) of the CSR Report)

CSR
Project. or

activity
identified

(l)

Sector in
which the
project is

covered

(2\

Projects or
programs
1, Local
Area or
other
2. Speciff
the State
and district
where
projects or
programs
was
undertaken

(3)

Amount
outlay(budget)
Project or
program wise

(4)

Amount
spent on the

projects or
programs
sub-heads:
1. Direct
expenditure
on projects
or programs
2.Overheads

(5)

Cumulative
expenditure
upto the

reporting
period

(6)

Amount
spent:
Direct or
through
Implementing
Agency

(7)

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13tl' August, 2021

For Western India Commercial Co, Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Director

DIN:00429371

A.P. Mallawat
Chairman of

CSR Committee
DIN: 08209376
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31,03.2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies( Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amendedJ

To,

The Members,

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED,
21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED, books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31.03.2021 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED, ("the Company") for the financial year ended
on 3 L03.2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act,2O13(the Act) and the rules made there-under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA'; and the rules made there-under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there-under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there-under to the

extentof Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings - Not Applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India

Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations,20ll;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations,20lS;
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999- Not Applicable
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations,20l5
f) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia(Registrarsto an Issue and ShareTransferAgents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.Not
Applicable;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not
Applicable;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Employee Benefits) Regulations,20l4;
Not Applicable

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; Not Applicable

k) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable
Preference Shares) Regulations, 20 13 ; Not Applicable

l) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
1996 and20l8

(vi) The Other laws, as informed and certified by the management of the Company which are specifically

applicable to the Company based on their sector/industry arc

a) West Bengal State Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employrnents Ac:t,1979

b) West Bengal Shop and Establishment Act,l963

c) Reserve Bank of India Act,1934

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The

Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors
& Independent Directors. Though the Company has no Executive Director but they have Manager, CFO and

CS. The change in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

All decisions at the Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Board of Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size

and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

Place: Kolkata Signature:
Date:16.07.2021 Name of Company Secretary in practice - Mukesh Chaturvedi

FCS No.: 11063
CP No.:3390
UDIN: F0 I 1063C000644366
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Corporate Social Rqsponsibilitv Policv (CSR Pplicy\

Western India Commercial Company Limited (WICCL) believes that for its operation and growth to

be sustainable, it has to be responsive to social needs, Its progress is thus underlined by strict
adherence to environment preservation, social upliftment, development and promotion of sports,
education, healthcare, rural and urban development etc. WICCL believes in making social
development as an integral part of its business activities so as to bring about a meaningful change in
the lives of people. WICCL considers social responsibility as a voluntary act rather than an additional
activity mandated by statute.

WICCL has in line with / in conformify with the statutory requirement, prepared its CSR Policy.

WICCL will maintain that all the activities that will be undertaken by it will be in accordance with the
policy and that the projects and activities that will be undertaken are in full compliance with Schedule
VII of the Companies Act,2013.

The contents of WICCL's CSR Policy are given below:-

l. Vision, Objective and Scope of the Policy

WICCL Programmes will focus on development and promotion of sports, education,
healthcare, rural and urban development and supporting needy people of the sociefy for their
overall upliftment. Though its social activities will be focusing primarily on areas

surrounding its operations, it may include people / programs which may not be so related

strictly considering overall objectives.

2. Mandate of Corporate Social Responsibility

WICCL is committed to spend 2o/o of its Average Net Profits of last three financial years as

defined in the Rules towards its social initiatives.

3. Board Committee

The CSR Committee of the Board will oversee the social activities to be undertaken by the

Company.

4. Identification of Projects and Modalities of Project Bxecution

The projects to be undertaken by the Company shall conform to the guidelines formulated or
laid down by the Government from time to time under Schedule VII to the Companies Act,
2013.

Organisational Mechanism

WICCL has co-promoted a Section 8 Company alongwith other Companies to undertake
activities relating to development of sports for fulfilling its CSR objectivities.

Implementation

CSR Committee of the Board is entrusted with implementing the social activities / initiatives
and establishing a monitoring mechanism in line with the policy of the company.

Budget - CSR Corpus

WICCL will allocate necessary budget after the beginning of relevant accounting year for
social initiatives. Fund allocation for various activities will be made on suitable and/or
progressive basis.

5.

6.

1
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8.

9.

Performance Management

WICCL will adopt suitable approach for measuring the actual performance of the projects

undertaken and Audit Committee of the Board of the Company shall review the performance.

Information Dissemination and Policy Communication

The Company's engagement in this domain shall be disseminated on its website and through

its Annual Reports etc.

10. Management Commitment

Our Board of Directors, Management and all of employees subscribe to the philosophy of
compassionate care. We believe and act on ethos of generosity and cornpassion, characterised

by a willingness to build a society that works for everyone. This is the cornerstone of our

CSR Policy.

11. Review of Policy

CSR Committee of the Board of Western India Commercial Company Limited will
review the policy from time to time based on the changing needs and aspirations of the target

beneficiaries and make suitable modifications as may be necessary.

Place:Kolkata

Date: 13th August, 2021

For Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.

Subhas Jajoo
Director

DIN:00429371

A.P. Mallawat
Chairman of

CSR Committee
DIN: 08209376
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policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management including criteria for

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the directors

Introduction

Western India Commercial Co. Ltd. (WICCL) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates

a culture of leadership to provide a iong-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of

governance.

WICCL recognizes the importance of independent directors in achievigg the. effectiveness of the

Board. WICCL aims to have an optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

Scope and Exclusion

This policy sets out the guiding prirciples for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for

identifuing persons who aie quJifi"d to become Directors and to determine the independence of

Directorsjn case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company'

Terms and Refqrence$

In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

.,Director" means a director appointed to the Board of the company.

,,Nomination & Remuneration committee" means the committee constituted by wICCL',s Board

in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,20l3'

,,Independent Directoro, means a director referred to in Section I 49(6) of the Compan ies Act, 20 I 3 '

Policv

Oual,ific ations and Criler ia
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and the Board, shall review on an annual basis,

appropriat" skills, knowledge and experience required of |he Board as a whole and its individual

*".U".r. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience that are relevant

for the Company's business operations.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee may take into account

factors such as:

o General understanding of the Company's business dynamics and socialperspective;

o Educational and professional background;

o Standing in the profession;
o personal and professional ethics, integrity and values; 

I responsibilitieso Willingness to devote sufficient time and zeal in carrying out their duties anr

effectively.'

The proposed appointee shall also fulfill the following requirements:

o Shall possess a Director Identification Number (DIN);

o Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act,2013;

o Shall give his written consent in prescribed form to act as a Director;

o Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a Committee

Member, the Committee Meetings;
o Shall abide by the ethics policy istablished by the Company for Directors, employees and Senior

Management Personnel;

l(



o Shall disclose his concern or interest in any Company or Companies or bodies corporate, firms,
or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting of the Board in
every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the disclosures already made;

. Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies Act, 2013
and other relevant laws.

The Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group that best enables

the success of the Company's business.

C r iter ia o-f Independenc e

The Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment I re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess determination of
independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by the Director.

To follow the criteria of independence as laid down in the Companies Act, 201 3.

The Independent Directors shall abide by the "Code for Independent Directors" as specified in

Schedule IV to the Companies Act,2013.

Other dire ctors hips / committ e e n?emb ers.hips

The Board members are expected to have adequate time, expertise and experience to contribute to

effective Board performance. The Committee shall take into account the nature of, and the tirne
involved in a Director's service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual
Director and making its recommendations to the Board

A Director shall not serve as Director in more than20 companies of which not more than 10 shall be

Public Limited Companies.

A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than "7 Listed Companies and not more

than 3 Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director in any Listed Cornpany.

A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 committees or act as Chairman of more than

5 committees across all companies in which he holds directorship.

Note: For the purpose of considering the lirnit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stake

holders' Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be

included and all other companies including Private Lirnited Companies, Foreign Cornpanies and

Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act,2013 shall be excluded.

IT



Policy relating to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees

Introduction

Western India Commercial Co. Ltd. (WICCL) recognizes the importance of aligning the business

objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives. The Company has therefore formulated

the femuneration poliay for its diroctors, koy managorial poraonnol and otl:o. c,rplvycwo kvvgi.r6 i,,

view the following objectives:

o Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,

retain and motivate talent to run the Company successfully.
o Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the perfoimance

benchmarks.
o Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting shorl

and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

However, there is no incentive pay at present.

Scope and Exclusion
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other

employees of the Company.

Terms and References
In this Policy, the terms shall have the following meanings:

"Director" means a director appointed to the Board of the Company'

"Key Managerial Personnel" means

i) the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence a Whole-

time Director;
ii) the Company Secretary;
iii) the Chief Financial Officer; and

iv) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

ooNomination & Remuneration Committee" means the committee constituted by WICCL's Board

in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,2013.

Policy
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, shall review and

approve the remuneration payable to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Cornpany

within the overall limits subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company where required.

Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and

the Committees thereof. In addition to the sitting fees the Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled

to be paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending Board and

Committee meetings or otherwise incurred in the discharge of their duties as Directors.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Comrrittee, shall also review

and approve the remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees of the

Company. Employee individual remuneration shall be determined according to their qualifications,

and work experience as well as their roles and responsibilities and shall be based on various factors

such asjob profile, skill sets, seniority and experience.

The remuneration structure of the Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other

Ernployees shall mainly include the following:

Basic Pay
Perquisites and Allowances
Retiral benefits

a)

b)
c)

\y



Form No.MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financialyear ended on 31't March,2021

fPursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN L67 1 20WB I 928PLC093 924

ii) Registration Date 13"' August, 1928

iii) Name of the Company Western India Commercial
Company Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company /
Limited by Shares

v) Addr'ess of the Registered Office and contact details 21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001

Tel: +9133 2230 9601 (3 Lines),
+9t33 2243 7725

Fax: +9i33 2213 1650

vi) Whether listed Company Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent. if any
Maheshwari Datarnatics Pvt. Ltd.
23, R.N. Mukherjee, 5tl'Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001

Tel: +91 33 2243 5029,2248 2248
Email : mdpldc@).yahoo.com

u PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTTVITIES OF' TIIE
COMPAIYY
A[ the business activities contributing l|Yo ot more of he total turnover of the Qprnpqly
Name and Description of main
products / services

NIC Code of
the products /

services

Yo of total turnover
of the Company

NBFC Activi8 997 1 104%

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY
AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

None

Iv SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share

i) Catesory-wise Shareholding As per Attachment A
ll Shareholding of Promoters As per Attachment B

iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding As per Attachment C

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other

than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs)

As per Attachment D

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel

As per Attachment E. However,
Key Managerial Personnel do not
hold any share in the Company.

v INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest

outstanding / accrued but not due for payment
NIL

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A Remuneration to MD/WTD andior Manager As per Attachment F

B Remuneration to other Directors As per Attachment G

C Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than

MD/WTD/Manager
Included in remuneration of
Manager in Attachment F. However
remuneration of CompanY

Secretary is provided in Attachment
H.

VI PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING
OF OFFENCES

None
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ii) Chan ge in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify there is no
,,C

Shareholc

beginning [01/
the year [3

ling at the

Aprl20llend
tt/Mar/21,1

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year ljtlAprl20
to 31/Mar/2!l

% of total

shares of the

No. ofshares companv PANSl No Name

l"z of totat

lshares ofthe
No, of shares lcompany

t NBI INDUSTRIAL FINANCE CO LTD

ou04,l2o2o 2105 1-1-.6944

AAACN3868N

3t/0312021 2105 tL.6944 2105 tt.6944

2 MANNAKRISHNA INVESTMENTS PVT LTD AACCM2323H

0t104/2020 50 0.2778

3t/0312021 50 0.2778 50 0,2778

3 ASISH CREATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

0t10412020 3555 19.7500

3tl03l2o2t 3555 19.7500 3555 19

4 SHREE CAPITAL SERVICES LTD AAGCS5082D

0t10412020 4425 24.5833

3tl03l202t 4425 24.5833 4425 24.s833

5 RAJKAMAL DEVI BANGUR ADAPB2l5OP

0t/0412020 725 4.0278

3L/03/2027 725 4.0278 725 4.0278

6 HARIMOHAN BANGUR ADJPBO9S2E

ou04/2020 2500 13.8889

3t1031202L 2500 13.8889 2500 L3.8889

7 PRASHANT BANGUR AHAPB4776F

0t10412020 130 0.7222

3t/031202! 13C 0.7222 130 0.7222

2_3



iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders A*taz,l^." &1>
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the
begi n ni n g lo1, / Apr / zol/ end

of the year [31.lMarl2t]

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year lO1,/Apr/20
to 3L/Marl2!1

SlNo Name

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company No, ofshares

% of total
shares of the
company PAN

t BAGLA ENGINEERING CO PVT LTD 5

0!10412020 35 0.L944

31./0312021 35 0.1944 35 0.1944

2 THE ORIENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED AAACTO62TR

0110412020 2000 1_r.1_111_

3t/03l2o2t 2000 tt.tTtt 2000 tt.1"Ltt

3 TAN USH REE LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIM ITED AACCT4837B

0!/04/2020 2475 13.7500

3t/03/2021- Transfer 2475 13.7500 2475 13.7500
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Attachment E

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning

loLlAprl2ollend ofthe
year 131./Mar/Ztl

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year l}tlApr/20
to3tlMar/Ztl

Sl No Name
No. of
shares

% of total

shares of
the
companv

No. ofshares

% of total
shares of
the
company

PAN

L RAJKAMAL DEVI BANGUR ADAPB2l5OP

07/04/2020 725 4,0278

31./0312027 725 4,0278 725 4.0278
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A Remuneration of MD/WTD and/or Man r CF'O

sl.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Ashish Kedia Total Amount (T)

1 Gross Salary 15.90"651 15.90.651

a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(l) of the Income Tax Act,
1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the

Income Tax Act. 1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option
) Sweat Equitv
4 Commission

- as % ofprofit
others

5 Others
TOTAL (A) 15,90,651 15.90.6s1

Ceiling as per the Act <84.00 Lac (being remuneration as per

Schedule V of the Act)

Attachment F
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AI\D KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

also

Attachment G
VI. REMTNIERATION OF'DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
B. Remuneration to other Directors

*Total remuneration to
ofA and B)

Managing Directors / Whole-time Directors / Manager and other Directors (being total

o Fee for
attending board
/ committee

o Commission

Other Non-
Executive
Directors
o Fee for

attending board
/ committee

o Commission

<84.00 Lac (being remuneration as per Schedule V of the Act)Overall ceiling as

26

Total
Amount

(<)



Attachment H
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than.MD/WTD/Manager i.e. Com

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Ghanshyam
Mohta

(?)

Total Amount

(<)

1 Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

1,80,000 1,80,000

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the lncome
Tax Act, 1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of
the Income Tax Act, l96l

2 Stock Option
J Sweat Equitv
4 Commission

as o/o of profit
- others

5 Others
TOTAL 1"80.000 1,80,000

L+



Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(L2) of
the Act read with RuIe 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rulesr 2014 :

i) Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year
Not Applicable, as none of the directors draw remuneration except sitting fees for Board /
Committee meetings.

ii) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year
r0,67%

iii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
Not Applicable.

iv) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
2 (Two)

v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of emptoyees other than
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration
Not applicable.

vi) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for
directors, key managerial personnel and othgr employees.

Lg



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance is about promoting fairness, transparency, accountability, commitment to
values, ethical business conduct and about considering all stakeholders' interests while conducting
business. It is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of
lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,20l5 (Listing Regulations), ancl
amendments thereto. It contains the Corporate Governance policies and practices of Western India
Commercial Co. ltd.

1. Philosophy On Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is a reflection of principles entrenched in our values and policies and also
embedded in our day-to-day business practices, leading to value driven growth, It encompasses a set
of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's affairs are being managed in a manner which
ensures accountabilitlz, transparency and faimess in all transactions in the widest sense. Our Corporate
Governance philosophy is aimed at creating and nufturing a valuable bond with stakeholders to
maximize stakeholders' value. Good governance practices stem from the dynamic culture and positive
mindset of the organisation. We are committed to meet the aspirations of all our stakeholders, The
Company is fully committed to the principles of transparency, integrity and accountability in all
spheres of its operations and has been practicing the principles of good corporate governance over the
years. In keeping with this commitment, the Company has been upholding fair and ethical business
and corporate practices and transparency in its dealings and continuously endeavors to review,
strengthen and upgrade its systems and procedures so as to bring in transparency and efficiency in its
business.

We believe, Corporate Governance is not just a destination, but a journey to constantly improve
sustainable value creation. It is an upward-moving target that we collectively strive to achieve, Our
multiple initiatives towards maintaining the highest standards of governance are detailed in this
Report.

2. Board of Directors

Keeping with the commitment to the principles of integrity and transparency in business operations
for good corporate governance, the Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of independent
and non-independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to separate the Board
functions of governance and management, We believe that an enlightened Board consciously creates a

culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance. The Board's actions and decisions are aligned with the Company's best interests. The
Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, direction and performance of
the Company. The Board is committed to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company's value
creation. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance,
objective and independent view to the Company's management while discharging its responsibilities,
thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures.

Composition

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, the Board comprises of Independent and Non- lndependent Directors. The strengh of the

Board as on 31't March, 2021 was six members all of whom are Non- Executive Directors. Out of
them two are Independent Directors and four are Non- Independent Directors of which one is a

Woman Director. Shri Subhas Jajoo is the Chairman of the Company.

The Independent Directors on the Board are competent and respected professionals from their
respective fields and have vast experience in general corporate management, finance, investment and

other allied fields which enable them to contribute effectively to the Company. All Independent

Directors make annual disclosure of their lndependence to the Company. The day to day management

of the Company is conducted by the Manager subject to the supervision, direction and control of the
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Board of Directors. The Independent Directors have made disclosures
there are no material financial and/or commerbial transactions between

to the

them
Board confirming that
and their relatives and

the company which could have potential conflict of interest with the company at large. In the opinion
of the Board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and

Companies Act,2013 and are independent of the management.

Six Board Meetings were held during the financialyear 2020-21 on the following dates:

,/ lotl'July,2020
,/ 22nd July,2ozo
,/ 5tl'September,2020
./ I 5'l' Septemb er,2020
,/ l2tl'November,2020
,/ l5tl'February ,2021

Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships

Particulars of the Board's Composition, Directors' Attendance at Board Meetings and at the previous
Annual General Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee memberships held as

ston 2021. are siven below
Sr.
No.

Name of the Director Attendance
at Board
Meetings

Attendance
at previous

AGM

No. of other
Directorships

(*)

Number of other
Board Committee

nositions (tO)
---------r-----------AslAs
Chairman I Member

1

2

Subhas Jajoo 6 Yes
Raj Kamal Devi
Bangur

2 No 0

J J.P. Mundra 6 Yes 6

4 S. K. Rathi 6 Yes 1

5 A. P. Mallawat 6 Yes 0

6 I.K,..E-t'-ettsp--be-{v--?. 6 Yes 1 1 1

Notes:
(*) includes directorships held in public limited Companies only, (Directorships held in Private

Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Section 8 of the

Companies Act,2013 are excluded)
(@) includes only positions held in Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of

the Board of Directors as per Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

Name of the othbr listed where the director is a director a y-{h e4_eser} ql d irqq!q$-! ip,---N;.; ;fiil-ilsi6d ffiliii Category of Directorship

Non-Executive Non-lndependent
Ltd. -Prte-.tqt
NIL NIL
NIL NIL
NIL
NIL

N: B. I"ild;;ii6iFffiffi Co. 
-

Independent Director

..----....---- L]ji--.....-------..--

None of the Non-executive Directors hold any shares or convertible instruments in the Company,

None of the directors of the Company are related inter-se.

Name of the Director

A. P. Mallawat
T K. ilii;td;M.y;

3o

J.P, Mundra

Rai Kamal Devi Bangur
Subhas Jaioo
S. K. Rathi NIL

NIL

2



SkillslExpertise/Competence of the Board of Directors

The Board comprises of qualified members who possess required skill, competence and expertise that

allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its committees.

The following skills / expertise / competencies have been identified for the effective functioning of
the Company and are currently available with the Board:

Code ofConduct

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and Our Code (the Code) is applicable

to the Directors and employees. The Code gives guidance and support needed for ethical conduct of
business and compliance of laws. The Code reflect the core values of the Company viz. Ownership

Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence. All the directors including Sonior

Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct as on

March 31,2021. A declaration to this effect, signed by the Manager and Chief Financial Officer
(CFO), annexed hereto forms part of this report, The code is available on the official website of the

comDanv: www.western-india.co. in

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors:
o Audit Committee,
o Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
o Stakeholders Relationship Committee, and

. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of two Independent Directors and one Non-Independent director' All
members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and they have accounting or related financial

management expertise. The primary purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board bf
Directors (the iBoard") of Western India Commercial Company Limited, (the "Company") in

fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to:

3l

Financial, Regulatory /
Legal &
Risk Management

Leadership of a financial firm or management of the finance functiott
of an enterprise, resulting in proficiency in financial management,

capital allocation and financial reporling process or experience in

activelv supervising various functions
Strategy and strategic
planning

Ability to think strategically, identifu and assess strategic
opportunities & threats and contribute towards developing effective
strategies in the context of the Company's policies & priorities.

Business Exposure Experience in driving business success witli an understanding of
diverse business environments, economic conditions, culture,
regulatory frameworks and a broad perspective on domestic market
oonortunities.

Leadership Extended leadership experience for a significant enterprise, resulting
in a practical understanding of organisations, processes, strategic
planning and risk rnanagelnent. Demonstrated strengths in developing
talent, planning successions and driving change and long-term
srowth

Market Exposure Wide knowledge, experience and exposure in the secondary market

Mergers and Acquisitions A history of leading growth through acquisitions and other business

combinations with the ability to assess 'build or buy' decisions,

Corporate Governance Service on a public company board to develop insights about

maintaining board and management accountability, protecting

shareholder interests and observing appropriate governance practices



a) the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company, including its internal control
procedures, the integrity of the audited financial results and other financial information provided
by the Company to its stakeholders, the public, the stock exchange and others,

b) the Company's compliances with legal and regulatory requirements,
c) the Company's independent auditors' qualification and independence,
d) the audit of the Company's financial statements, and the performance of the Company's internal

audit function and its Independent Auditors.

. Terms of Reference:

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee covers areas mentioned under Part C of Schedule
II [See Regulation l8(3)] of the Listing Regulations and section 177 of the Companies Act,2013,
besides other terms as may be refened by the Board of Directors. All the Members of the Audit
Committee are qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial statements. The brief
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are outlined here under:

o Review of the company's financial reporting process, adequacy of internal control systems and
the disclosure of its financial information;

r Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:-
a. matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement of the Board's

Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act,2013;
b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
c. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;
d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f. disclosure ofany related party transactions;
g. modified opinion(s), if any, in the draft audit report,

o Reviewing the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
o Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

o Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them;
o Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of

audit process;
o Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
. Approval (including omnibus approval) or any subsequent modification of transactions with

related parties;
o Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including frequency of internal audit reports;
r Reviewing the findings of any observations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or inegularity or a failure of internal control system of a material nature and

reporting the matter to the Board;
o Evaluation of internal financial controls;
o Reviewing, with the management, perfoffnance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of

the internal control system;
o To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;
. Approval of appointment of chief financial off,rcer after assessing the qualifications, experience

and background, etc. ofthe candidate;
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a

a

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Reviewing management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;
Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the intemal auditor;
Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;
To review the functioning of whistle blower / vigil mechanism;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Reviewing valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever necessary.

Statement of deviations :

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including reporl of monitoring agency, wherever

applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in tenns of Regulation 32(l) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 201 5.

(b) Annual Statement of funds utilised for purpose other than those stated in the offer document
/ prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

o

o

o

a

a

a

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5, wherever applicable.
. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit

committee.

Constitution of the Audit Committee

The Composition of the Committee, together with the details of the attendance of each member as at

31't March, 2021 is given below:

Director Designation

A. P. Mallawat Chairman

T.K. Bhattacharya Member

;G;;*----i
---M;- ir;ilii6ila;pila;i- ]

Director I-- ffi;:'i1;ilt1v;i,ia66a&i'-- lrl

Director i--i6;-*;;iire i,6;rra;d;aili ISubhas Jajoo Member rl

PrqgLer i

Meetings of the Audit Committee
Five Audit Committee Meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21 on the following dates:

,/ Ioft July,2020
,/ 22"d tuly,2O2O
,/ 15ft Septembeg21}}
,/ l2ftNovembe\2020
,/ 15ftFebruary,2o2I

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee acts in accordance with the prescribed provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Listing Regulations

The brief terms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

(a) To formulate and review the criteria that must be followed for determining
positive attributes/experience for appointment and independence of a director;

(b) To recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the

managerial personnel and other employees and to ensure compliance with the

policy set forth by the Company;

qualifications,

directors, key
, remuneration

in Senior
for their

(c) To identifo persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board

appointment and/or removal ;

33

Sr.
No.

Meetings
Attended

1. 5

2. 5

J. 5



(d)

(e)

(0

(e)

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and of the
board of directors as a whole;
To extent or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors;
To report on the systems and on the amount of the annual remuneration, in whatever form, of
directors and key manageriallsenior management personnel to the Board.
To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

Constitution and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee
The Composition of the Committee together with the details of the attendance of each member during
the financialyear 2020-21 is given below

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Two NRC Meetings were held during the financialyear 2020-21 on the following dates:

./ 14tr' October,2O2O

./ 12tl'February,2o2l

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors
o Attendance at Board or Committee meetings.
o Contribution at Board or Committee meetings.
o Adherence to ethical standards and code of conduct of the Company.
o Meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the Board/ Comrnittee meetings.

Remuneration Policy

The committee formulates the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommends to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. The Committee reviews and recommends payment of annual
salaries, commission and other employment conditions of the Directors and Key Managerial Personne[.
The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of performance /
achievements on a periodical basis. No Stock option has been granted to any of the Directors during
the financial year 2020-21. The policy forms part of the Directors' Report. The Company doesn't
have any pecuniary relationship or transaction with any of the non-executive directors. None of the
Directors have been given any remuneration during the financial year under review except Meeting
Fees as per details given below.

The details of fees id to the Directors for the year ended March, 202

Director Category Sittine Fees (()
J.P. Mundra Non- Executive Non-Independent Director r 8.600
Raj Kamal Devi
Bansur

Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 5,000

Subhas Jaioo Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 22,200
S. K. Rathi Non- Executive Non-Independent Director 1s.000

A. P. Mallawat Non- Executive -Independent Director 24,600
T.K. Bhattacharya Non- Executive -Independent Director 24,600

Total 110,000

ven
Sr.
No.

Name of the
Director

Category D;,iil;i6; Meetings
Attended

I A. P. Mallawat Non- Executive Independent Director Chairman 2
2. T-.-K,-Eh-ct[psh-+ry--q N-sn----Exqqu-t l-v--e- hdep -ettdqIt] D teqlpr Member 2

J.P. Mundra Non- Executive Non-lndependent
Director

Member 2
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5. StakeholdersRelationshipCommittee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee acts in accordance with the prescribed provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and inter alia approves transfer &
transmission of shares, issue of duplicate/re-materialised shares and consolidation & splitting of
certificates, review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders, review the

adherence to the servioe standards adopted by the Company in respeot of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, redressal of complaints from investors including
inter-alia non-receipt of annual reports and non-receipt of declared dividends etc.

Constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
No Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting was held during the financialyear 2020-21,

Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor grievances IS

.pJ-q.v! 4sd bse.u-!-qeli
Nas-,-s---------- I -Qbq-{,thvsp--Msht-q P-g-$pilv*$-g gr-e-lelv--etd ii;r;" oaf";it

-Qbq-{,e-tJep--Mshl-qP-9-$p.s
_?1, l1s4 Bs_e9_, Sq_1!.4r.:7-09 99.1Iw_q{ PglgeD..
033- 2230 7905

Detaits of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer
No investor grievances were received during fhe financial year from
there were no pending transfers for the yehr under review,

6, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by
and overseeing the execution of the Company's CSR Policy as prescribed

2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Committee comprises of two
two non-executive directors. The members of the CSR Committee are:

the stakeholders. Fufiher

the Board for forrnulating
under the Companies Act,
independent directors and

The Composition of the Committee durins theyear 2l)20-21is siven below:
Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation Category

1 J.P. Mundra Chairman Non- Executive Non -Independent Director
2 S. K. Rathi Member Non- Executive Non -lndependent Director
3 T.K. Bhattacharya Member Non- Executive Independent Director

Telephone No

Sr. No. Name Designation in
Company

Status in the Committee

1 Shri A. P. Mallawat lndependent Director Chairman

2 Shri T.K. Bhattacharya Independent Director Member
J Shri J. P. Mundra Director Member
4 Shri Subhas Jaioo Director Member

The CSR Report as required under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended 3l't March, 2021

is attached to the Board's Report.

Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
One CSR Committee Meeting was heid during ihe financial year 2020-21 on 5th March,2021.
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Day, Date and Time

Wednesday, 30'n September,
2020 at l:30 P,M,

at l0:30 A.M.

10:30 A.M.

7, Details of General Body Meeting

Annual General Meeting
The details of last 3 Annual General Meetings together with the details of the special resolution, if
any, passed thereat is provided hereunder:

*-: 
Sd;t"t - I

Resolutions 
iPassed I--------------- ;;-------------------'lYeS i

21, Strand Road,

Remote e-voting and ballot at the AGM
To allow the shareholders to vote on the resolutions proposed at the AGM, the Company has arranged
for remote e-voting facility. The Company has engaged NSDL to provide e-voting facility to all the
members. Members whose names appear on the register of members as on the record date shall be
eligible to participate in the e-voting.

The facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM. Members who have not
cast their votes by remote e-voting can exercise their vote at the AGM.

8. Means of Communication
The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded to Stock
Exchange immediately upon approval by the Board of Directors and are simultaneously published
in newspapers in English and Bengali (regional language) namely Business Standard and Sukhabar.

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattern, Quarterly
Financial Results and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange and are also disseminated on
the website of the Company.

During the year under review, no presentation was made to the institutional investors or analysts.

M;il;i dr;;iM;iirs-- [ S;6;a;ilthe is'r sep6.b;;:idii ;ilfi.jo AM. ;i
21, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700 001

Book Closure Dates: 18.09.2021to25.09.2021 (both days inclusive)

ing on Stock
Nodividendhasbeen__reconp_eldg4_by_thg-P-g.C-td-'-----rti;- 

Eq"tt),-Siiar6s;f ilre-
The Calcutta Stock Exohange Limited (CSE),
7, Lyons Range,
Kolkata - 700 001

The Company has paid the annual listing fee of the exchange for the

Exchange

Scrip Code: 10033036

-9--qd."--N-s,-'7tq I
rNE925M01015

9. General Shareholderso Information

Stock Code

3L

Year
Ended

Venue

31" March,
2020

21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700001

31" March,
2019

21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700001

Yes

31" March,
2018

None

Financial Year 2020-21
Dividend pavment date

ISIN



10. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. acts as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company
having its registered office at 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5'r' Floor, Kolkata - 7OO 001. Contact
No.033-22482248,22435029,Fax: 033-22484787 . Email Id: mdpldc(@yahoo.corn.
RTA also maintains a website: www.mdpl.in

11. Share Transfer System
Share transfers are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and approved by the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, if the documents are complete in all respects, within l5 days
from the date of lodgment. The same is examined by a Practicing Company Secretary on half yearly
basis and a Certificate as reciuired under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations is obtained and
forwarded to CSE where the Company's shares are listed.

12. Shareholding Pattern

The shareholding pattern of the Company's shares is provided below:-

Distribution of shareholdine as on 3110312021

Share Holding No of Holders oh aee No of Shares Yo aee

Upto 500 3 3 0.0000 215 1.1944

501 to 1000 I 10.0000 725 4.0218

1001 to 2000 I 10.0000 2000 11,1111

2001 to 3000 J 30.0000 7080 39.3333

3001 to 4000 I 10.0000 3 555 19.7500

4001 to 5000 I 10.0000 4425 24.5833

Grand Total 10 100.0000 18000 100.0000

13. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity
The Company's equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (lndia) Limited (CDSL).

As on 31't March, 2021, 17965 equity shares, constituting 99.81% of the paid-up equity capital of
the Company, stood dematerialized and the rest are in physical form.

h ptvqleel &""rp.-ql-g!r..9-fl Ulrsb ?9?1i
...........----.--. i1r--ef F-eiq np"-ajpiiri.----..----...-... ....... r

NSDL 86.06
13.75

Total i I 100.00

Outstanding GDRsi ADRs/ Warrants/ Convertible Instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Wanants or any Convertible Instruments

First

14. Financial Calendar (Tentative)

.Ih !r4 s v e Lt g r"-r-e-!-v !!.!
Fourth quarter & Annual results

3+

Status of total number of shares dematerialized ani
Denositorv No. of Shares

15.490

0.19

Financial Year 1" April. 2021 - 31" March,2022
14'n Ausust. 2021

Second Ouarter & Half-yearly results 15"' November.202l
l5'" February,2022
End of Mav.2022



15. Secretarial Audit
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Mr. Mukesh
Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed by the Company to conduct Secretarial

Audit of records and documents of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the

Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013, Depositories

Act, 1996, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, and all the relevant Regulations and

Guidelines of the SEBI, as applicable to the Company. The audit also covers the reconciliation of
share capital audit, on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and

total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total paid up capital is in agreement with the
total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with
NSDL & CDSL.

16. Risk Management
The main identified risks at the Cornpany are Commercial Risks, Financial Risks, Operational Risks
and Legal & Regulatory Risks. The Risk Management is overseen by the Audit Committee of the
Company on a continuous basis. The Audit Committee ensures that risks to the Cornpany's continued
existence as a going concern and to its development are identified and addressed on timely basis.
However, constitution of Risk Management Committee is not applicable to the Company in terms of
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations,

Credit Ratings

No instances have occurred during the financial year 2020-21 which warrant the Company to obtain

Credit Rating.

17. Other Disclosures
a) During the financial year 2020-Zl there was no materially significant Related Party

Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives etc. having potential

conflict with the interests of the Company at large except those disclosed in the Board's
Report. There was no related party transaction during the year, i,e. transactions of material
nature, with its promoters, Directors or the management that may have potential conflict with
the interests of Company atlarge,

b) There was no non-compliance by the entity, penalty, strictures imposed by stock exchange or
the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last

three years.

c) The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of
Board and senior management personnel,

d) The Company has adopted a 'Code of Conduct for Prevention of ,Insider Trading' ("the

Code") in accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations ,2015 as amended upto date, The code expressly

lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be made, by the

directors and the senior management personnel while dealing with the shares of the Company

on the bourse and cautioning them on the consequences of non-compliance thereof. The

Company has also formed Whistle Blower Policy. Further, we affirm that no personnel have

been denied access to the Audit Committee. Employees can report to the Management

concerns regarding unethical behavior, act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's

Code of Conduct Policy.

Address
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Ashish Kedia Ghanshyam Mohta
21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700 001

21, Strand Road,
Kolkata - 700 001

Tel:033 -22309601
Fax: 033-22131650

Tel: 033-22307905
Fax 033-22131650

Email ID: westernindiacommercialcoltd@gmail.com
Website: www.westent-ind ia.co. in
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e) The Company is in cornpliance with all mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.
The Company has not adopted any non-mandatory requirements,

f) Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice
Mukesh Chaturvedi, Practicing Company Secretary, has issued a certificate as required under
clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, confirming that none of the
directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as director of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this reporl.

g) Details of total fees paid to statutory auditors:-
The details of total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a consolidated basis, to the

auditor are as followitor are as 'S:

Type of service Fiscal2021 Fiscal2020
Audit Fees 16,500 1 5800
Tax Audit Fees 6,100 5800
Others 2.844

h) No complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was filed by any woman during the financial
year under report, hence no disclosures are applicable,

18. Discretionary Requirements
The Company has also ensured the implementation of non-mandatory requirements as under:

i) Unmodified audit opinions / reporting
ii) The Internal Auditor reporting directly to the Audit Committee.

19. There are no shares lying in the demat suspense / unclaimed suspense account as on the date of
this Report.

20. Prevention of Insider Trading
The Company has adopted an Insider Trading Policy to regulate, monitor and report trading by
insiders under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015. This Policy also includes
code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information, initial
and continual disclosures. The Board reviews the Policy / Code on a need-to-know basis, This Policy
is available on our website.

21. Auditor's Certificate on Corporate Governance
As required by Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Auditor's Certificate on Corporate
Governance is annexed to the Board's Report.

22. CLO and CFO Certification
The CFO acts as Manager of the Company as well. The Manager and CFO Certification is provided

in this Annual Report as required by the Listing Regulations.
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Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice

CERTIFICATE
Qtursuant to clause l0 of Part C of Schedule V of LODR)

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities and

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (LODR) in respect of Western India Commercial Company Limited
(CIN: L67120W81928PLC093924) I hereby certifu that:

On the basis of the written representation / declaration received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, as on March 31, 2021 , none of the directors on the board of the
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of
companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Place: Kolkata
Date:09th July,2O2l

Mukesh Chaturvedi
Practicing Company Secretary

FCS:11063
CP No.: 3390

UDIN: F0 I I 063C00060772 5
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Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of Western India Commercial Company Limited

We, D.K. Chhajer & Co., Cha(ered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Western India
Commercial Company Limited ("the Company") have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended 31't March, 2021, as stipulated in
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (q) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E
of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (collectively referred to as "SEBI Listing
Regulations").

Managements' Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's
managenient. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the condition of the Corporate Governance
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate
Governance requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the ICAI), the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that
we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) l, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations
provided by the Management, we certiff that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (a) to (q) of sub-regulation
(2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the
year ended 3l't March, 2021.

We state that the compliance certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For D.K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 304 1 3 8E
Atish Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 062880
UDIN: 2 I 062880AAAABD43 52
Kolkata
Dated: 05th August, 2021
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Manager and CFO Certification

To,
The Board of Directors,
Westem India Commercial Co. Ltd.
Kolkata

Dear members of the Board,

I, Ashish Kedia, Manager and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of my knowledge

and belief, oertiff that:

L I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of WESTERN INDIA
COMMERCIAL COMPAI\rY LIMITED and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information of the Cornpany and the Board's Report for the financial year

ended March 31,2021.I state that:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs for the period
presented in this report and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

2, There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent,

illegal or in violation of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting

and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining

to financial reporting and confirm that there have been no material weakness in internal controls

over financialieportlng including any corrective actions with regard to deficiencies.

4. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
a. that there were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the

year;
b. All significant changes in accounting policies made during the year, if any, and that the same

have been disclosed suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and

c. that there were no instances of significant fraud that involve management or other employees

who have a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

5. I further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this Repofi.

Place:Kolkata
Date: 5e August' 2021 

Ashish Kedia
Manager and

Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS RBPORT

The outlook presented herein is based on management's own assessment and it may vary due to future

economic and other developments in the country and abroad.

OVERVIEW

Given the impact of the pandemic, FY2021 was expected to be an extremely challenging year. The

degrowth in GDP was much larger than expected. April-June 2020, real GDP contracted by a massive

24.4%. In the second quarter, July-September 2020, GDP again contracted by 73%. Thankfully, we

began to witness early signs on resumption of economic activity in the second half of the year with

several high frequency indicators suggesting that the economy was back to positive growth. The third

quafter (October-December 2020) saw a small positive growth of 0.4Y0 compared to the same period in

the previous year. The economy saw a 'V' shaped bounce-back in the second half of the year. The most

recent IMF forecast estimates India's GDP growth for FY2022 to be around 9oh to 9.5%. If that were to

occur, it will be a significant growth tumaround among all the major economies of the world, including

China.

The only grey cloud is the surge in infections that started with the second wave beginning in early March

202l.Hopefully, a serious increase in the pace of vaccinations across the country should bring this surge

significantly down; and if we keep all enterprises and workers open for business, it should not affect the

"*ro1ny 
in any significant manner, except for a severe third wave of pandemic which hopefully should

not be so severe as the second wave.

THE COVID-l9 PANDEMIC

The COVID-I9 pandemic is a once in a lifetime oecurrence that has brought with it unimaginable

sufferilgs to the people and to almost all sections of the economy. When the pandemic struck and led to

nationwide lockdowns to curtail the transmission of disease, it was natural to fear that the global

economy would stay in extreme stress of the kind not seen since the Great Depression and would have a

long-lasting economic impact.

To counter the crippling impact of the lockdowns on economies, the world's policymakers have resofied

to fiscal and monetary measures never seen before in global economic history. It remains to be seen if
these relief measures sufficed, and whether actions taken by Governments across the globe adequately

compensated for the disruptions created in the lives of people'

Multiple vaccines were found with impressive efficacy levels in less than a year - which will probably

rank as among one of the most incredible achievements in science. The announcement of successful

development olvaccines seemed to lift spirits around the world. Unfoftunately, the advent of winter saw

,.r.ruicountries battle second waves of COVID-19 infections, including more virulent strains leading to

paftial lockdowns. The race between vaccines and variants is heating up as massive vaccination drives

are underway. Much depends on blocking transmission and not just the disease.

Fortunately for lndia, which is home to some of the largest vaccine makers in the world, the supply

constrainti should be limited and temporary. Moreover, our experience in implementing large scale

vaccination programmes should help in vaccinating our vulnerable population. Even so, with many states

in India witnessing a serious second surge of COVID-19, vaccinating the vast population is a challenge.

After an estimated historic correction of (3.3%) in 2020, the International Monetary Fund (lMF) has

projected the global economy to grow 6o/o in calendar year 2021 and 4.4oh in2022 on the back of the

hscal and monetary supporl prorid"d by Governments of the world over coupled with widespread

vaccination.
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NBFC INDUSTRY & BUSINESS UPDATE

India,s financial sector is a highly diversified one comprising commercial banks, insurance companies,

non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial

entities. The sector is predominantly driven by banking and non-banking financial companies ('NBFCs').

Over the past few years NBFCs have emerged as important financial intermediaries, particularly for the

small-scale and retail sectors in underserved areas and unbanked sectors. The sector turned out to be

growth engine in an environment where significant importance is assigned to financial inclusion and have

aided the economy in employment generation and wealth creation by rnaking credit available to the rural

segment. However, in recent times the sector is becoming a weaker segment in Indian financial system'

COMPANY'S POSITION

The Company is registered with the RBI as a Non-Banking Financial Institution and is categorized. as

Non-Deposit takingIBFC" (NBFC-ND). The operation of the company during tl-re year was centered in

investments in shares and securities. Additionally the company was investing in Mutual Funds too. The

main income of the Company is dividend income on long-term investments, interest on fixed deposit and

profit from sale of investments. The results of the Company's operations for the financialyear ended 31't

March, 2021have been dealt with in the Director's Repoft.

The Company, being into finance and investment activify, the impact of movement of stock markets

affects its'profitabilii=y. The Company has long-term orientation in its investments and mainly invests in

listed equiiies. The objective of investments portfolio is to balance risk with adequate return.

OUTLOOK

A significant portion of the Company's income arises from investment and share trading operation, which

ar" iargely dependent on the condiiion of the stock market. The stock market activity depends largely

upon tf,e 
"conomi" 

growth momentum and a combination of other factors like inflation, domestic savings,

surging portfolio iniestments into India etc. The unusual developments in the global economy may pose

unceftainties and challenges for the emerging market economies like India' However, the Company has

investment policy wherein it invests in inose securities which have easy liquidity, better yield and

potential for price appreciation in medium to long run'

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTBM

The Company has implemented a system of internal controls and risk management for achieving

op.ruiionuf .ifi"i"r"y, optimal utilization of resources, credible financial reporting and compliance with

local laws.

The system is aimed at covering all areas of operations, The transactions entered into by the Company

a.e duly authorized and recorde-d correctly. lt has implemented suitable controls to ensure that financial

transactions are reported with accuracy and that there is strict compliance with applicable laws and

regulations. These controls are regularly reviewed internally for effectiveness'
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the details of
significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year)

in key financial ratios are as follows:-

Particulars Financia[ Year
2021 2020

GNPA (%) NIL NIL

NNPA (%) NIL NIL

Return on Assets (%) 0,l l 0.83

Return on Equity (%) 0.12 0.83

Net Interest Margin (%) 100 100

Current Ratio 376 230

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00

Net Profit Margin (%) 179.1s 92.30

EPS (Rs.) 383 1748.84

Price Earnings Ratio N.A. N.A.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Certail statements under "Management Discussion & Analysis" describing the Company's objectives'

estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking statements within the rneaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Although the expectations are based on reasonable

assumptions, the actual results could materially differ from those expressed or implied, since the

Company's operations are influenced by many external factors beyond the control of the Company.

Inr"sto.i are cautioned that the Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modifo, revise or'
update any forward looking statement or opinion, on the basis of any subsequent developments, events or

information.
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INDEPEITDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Western India Commercial Co. Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Western India Commercial Co. Limited

(the "Compofly"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,202l,and the Statement of

Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to

as oothe Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting

Standards prescribed under sectio.n 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, asamended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles getrerally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3lst March, 2021, and the profit and other

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics' We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion'

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgrnent, were of most significance in

our audit ofthe financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western lndia Commercial Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l.st March, 2021

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be

the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,

Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's

Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report.thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In oonnection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially. inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

1 Valuation and Existence of Investments-

We have focused on the valuation and

existence of the investments in Equity,

Preference Shares and Mutual Funds

because these represent a principal

element on the net assets in the Financial

Statements

Refer Note 7 to the Financial Statements

We obtained independent confirmation of the number

ofunits held and net asset value per unit for each ofthe

mutual fund units and market value for shares as at the

yearend date, confirmation of shares and its market

value

We have also obtained the most recent set of audited

financial statements for unquoted investments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western lndia Commercial Co. Ltd'
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the

financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and

maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so'

The Board of Directors is also responsible for everseeing the company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if individually or in the

aggregate, they oould reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financiat statements'

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

, Identi6, and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
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INDEPENDBNT AUDITORSI' REPORT
To the Members of Western India Commercial Co' Ltd'
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from'

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of int6rnal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3XD of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modif, our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern'

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user

of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of

our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
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INDBPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western India Commercial Co, Ltd'
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3rst March, zozl

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report

because the adverse consequences ofdoing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication,

Other Matter

Due to COVID 19 pandemic and the consequential nationwide lockdown announced by the

Central and State Government including the travel restrictions, maintenance of social distancing

etc., and the audit team could not visit the Company, We have performed the audit from remote

location, on the basis of data, scan copies, documents, management,estimates, assumptions,

ceftificates and other information supplied electronically by the management on online platform.

We have relied on Management assurance of the authenticity, completeness and accuracy of these

records electronically submitted to us. 
.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (l l) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the

,'Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order'

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) Without prejudice to the situation described under "Other matter" section, we have sought and

obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of Western India Commercial Co. Ltd.
Report on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3tst March, zozt

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3lst March,2021

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3lst March,

2021from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reporl in

"Annexure B";

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transfered, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31't March, 2021.

ForDKChhajer&Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Atish Shah
Partner
Membership No, 062880
UDIN: 2 1 0628804 AAAALT 43 5

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30tr' June,2021
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Annexure A to Independent's Auditor Report

Western India Commercial Company Ltd'
on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 I't March,202l

i. The Company does not hold any fixed assets during the year ended 3l't March, 2021. Therefore,

the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company does not have any inventory and as such clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable

to the CompanY.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, limited liability

partnership firm, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of

the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii)[(a), (b) and (c)] of the said Order are not

applicable to the ComPanY'

iv. In our opinion and accOrding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being

a Non-Banking Finance Company, providing loans in the ordinary course of business/engaged in

the business of financing of companies, provisions of Sec 1 85 and Section 1 86 of the Companies

Act2013 are not applicable to the Company'

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73

to 76 ofthe Act and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(v) of the

order is not applicable on the company.

vi. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. (a) The Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident

fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service tax, Customs Duty, cess

and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities' According to the

information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the

aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 3 1't March, 2021 for a period of more than six months from

the date of becoming PaYable'

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess, etc, which have

not been deposited as at 3l't March, 2021 on account of dispute.

viii. The Company does not have any borrowings from financial institution or bank or Government

nor has it issued any debentures as at the Balance Sheet date, hence the provisions of Clause

3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the company'

ix. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further public offer

(including debt instruments)/term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause

' 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company'

x. We have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or

reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the company, the company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in

aocordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with

Schedule V of the Companies Act,2013'
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Annexure A to Independent's Auditor Report

Westem India Commercial Company Ltd,

on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't Match,2021

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not

applicable.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions

of section 177 and tbt of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards'

xiv. No money was raised through preferential allotment/private placements of shares/fully/partly
'convertible debentures during the year under review, hence, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the

said order is not applicable to the Company

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or person

connectedwith them. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934 and the registration has been duly obtained.

ForDKChhajer&Co
Chartered Accountdnts
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Atish Shah
Partner
Membership No. 062880
UDIN: 2 1 062880A4 AAALT 43 5

Place:Kolkata
Date:30ft June;2021
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Annexure B to lndependent Auditor's Report

Western lndia Commercial Company Ltd,

on the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l't March, 202L

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act,2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Western India Commercial

Co. Limited ("the Company") as at 3l't March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,2013 ("The Act").

Auditorrs Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporling (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed Lrnder section i43(10) of the Act to the extent

applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial

Controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thal a material weakness exists and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error'

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporling.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

sq



Annexure B to lndependent Auditor's Report

Western lndia Commercial Company Ltd,

on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2021

(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasbnable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material misstatements due to

elror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate'

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, read with impact of Covid- 19 stated in

Emphasis of Matter paragtaphin Independent Auditor's Report, an adequate internal financial controls

,yri.. over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at 31't March, 2)2l,based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India'

ForDKChhajer&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 304138E

Atish Shah

Partner
Membership No. 062880

UDIN: 2 1 062880AAAAAL7 43 5

Place: Kolkata
Date:30ft lune,202l
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st MARCH,2021

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.
For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts
Firm Registration No. 304138E

Atish Shah Subhas Jajoo T.K.Bhattacharya

Portner Chairmon Director

Membership No.062880 DIN:- 00429371 DIN:- 00711665

Place : Kolkata Ashish Kedia G.S Mohta

Date: 30th June,2021 Manager and CFO Company Secretary

'Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Note As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

A

t

2

B

1.

2

ASSETS

Financial Assets

(a)Cash and Cash Equivalent
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above

(c) Loan
(d) lnvestments
(e) Other Financial Assets

TOTAT

Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (net)

TOTAL

TOTAI. ASSETS

UABTUTTES AND EqUrTY

Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities

Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions
(b)Deffered tax liablities
(b) Other Non-Financial Liabilities

TOTAL

Equity
(a)Share Capital

(b)Other Equity

Tota!

TOTAT EqUITY AND LIABILITIES

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

TL

t2
13

t4
15

587.41.

10.00

61,822.50

8.45

5.71.

10.00

100.00

37,748.63

9,90

62,428.36

6.83

37,874.24

4.32

6.83 4.32

62,435.19 37,878.56

1.1.4

0.27

2,731.84

0.20

1,.79

0,27

0.37

2,733.45

18.00

59,683.74

2.43

18,00

37,858,1.3

59,7Ot.74 37,876,L3

62,435.t9 37,878.56

s-b



WESTERN !NDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st MARCH,2021
. t'Rs. in lakhs)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finaricial statements,

ln terms of our rePort attached,

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 304138E

Atish shah

Partner

Membership No.062880

Place : Kolkata

Date :30th June,202t

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subhas JaJoo

Choirmon

DIN:- 00429371

Ashish Kedia

Monoger and CFO

<z-

T. K.Bhattacharya
Director

DIN:- 00711665

G.S Mohta

Company Secretary

Particulars Note
Year ended

3lst March, 2021

Year ended

31st March, 2020

(t)

(il)

(il t)

(tv)

(v)

(vt)

(vil)

(vilr)

Revenue from Operations
(a) lnterest lncome
(b) Dividend lncome
(c) Net Gain on Fair Value Changes

(d) Net Profit on Sale of lnvestments

Total lncome

Expenses

(b) Employee Benefit Expenses

(c) Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(loss) before Tax (l-lt)

Tax Expense

lCurrent Tax

loeferred tax

I

I

lProfit/(Loss) for the Year
I

lOther Comprehensive lncome
I

l(i) ttems that will not be reclassified to Profit /(Loss)
I

| (a) Equity lnstruments through OCI

(b) lncome Tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to Profit/(Loss)

i) ltems that will be reclassified to Profit/(Loss)

(a) Financial lnstruments through OCI

b) lncome Tax relating to ltems that will not be

reclassified to Profit/(Loss)

Comprehensive lncome for the Year (i + ii)

'otal Comprehensive lncome for the Year (V+Vl)

per Equity Share (FV Rs. 100/- each)

Basic & Diluted (Rs.)

16

t7
18

19

20

2t

22

23

23

24

6.39

22.94

6.66

2.49

2.69

335,58

0.1s

2,63

38.48 341.0s

fi.8e
5.64

10.66

15.60

23.50 26,26

L4.98 3L4.79

6.50
(60,46

(s3.e6)

68.94 3L4.79

24,5t4.75

(2,790.L9,

34.03

(2.10

(3,016.48)

(20.07)

2L,756.49 (3,036.55)

2L,825.43 (2,72L.76l,

383.00 1,748.84



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March,202L

Particulars Year Ended
31st March, 2021

Year Ended
31 st Mareh- 2O2O

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax

Adjustments for :

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of lnvestments

lnterest lncome

Dividend on lnvestments

Net Gain on Fair Value Changes

Operating Profit/(toss) before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for :

(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets

(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Non- Financial Assets

lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities

lncrease /(Decrease) in Provision

lncrease /(Decrease) in Other Non-Financial Liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations

Net lncome Tax (Paid)/Refund

NET CASH FROM/(USED tN) OPERATTNG ACTtVtTtES (A)

Cash Flow From lnvesting Activities
Sale of Mutual Funds

lRedemption of Preference Shares

lPurchase of Mutual Fund

lerr.hrr" of share

lsale of share
I

llnvestment in Fixed Deposit

llnterest Received

loiuia.no Received

l(tncrease)/oecrease in Loan Given

lNrr cnsu FRoM/(usED tN) tNVEsrtNG ACTtvtrtEs (B)

lCash rlow From Financing Activities
I

I

lNrr cnsu FRIM /(usED tN) FINANCING AcrtvtflEs (c)

I

lruer rrucnensE/(DEcREASE) tN cAsH & cAsH EQUIvALENTs (A+B+c)

lcastr anO Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year

lcash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year
I

14.98

(2.49

(6,3e

(22,s4

(6,66

314.79

(2.63 )

(2.6s)

(33s, s8)

(0.1s )

(23.s0)

(3,17)

(0.66)

to.rzl

(26.26],

2.01.

0.02

1.32

(1..27)

0.37
(27.s0)

(e.01)

(23.821

(1.s3)

(36.s1) (2s.3s)

798.79

71.65
(7s,00)

(e6.88)

385,69

6.39

27.56

100,00

910.86

(1,195.00

(1s4.38

224.83

1".45

326.98
(100.00

6L8,2L L4.75

581.70

5.7t
(10.se)

L6,30

587.4t 5.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 304138E

\

Atlsh shah

Partner
Membership No.062880

Place : Kolkata

Date : 30th June,2021

Subhas Jajoo T.K.Bhattacharya

Chairman Director

DIN:- 00429371 DIN:- 00711665

Ashish Kedia G.S Mohta

Monoger qnd CFO ComPonY secretqry
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WESTERN INDTA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year ended 31st March, 2021

a Share
Particulars Note Numbers

@ each issued, subscribed and

As at 1st April, 2018

As at 31st March, 20'19

As at 31st March, 2020

As at 31st March,2021

13

18,000

18,000

18,000
18,000

b. Other

Statutory
Reserve

Retained

Earnings

Equlty

lnstruments
Through OCI

Financlal

lnstruments
Through OCI

Total

Balance as on lst April, 2019

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Other Comprehensive lncome for the

Year

Balance as on 31st March, 2020

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Transfer to Statutory Reserve

Other Comprehensive lncome for the

Balance as on 31st March, 2021

449,64

62.96

2,045,32

314,79
(62.e6)

38,080.89

(3,016,48)

4.04

(20.07)

40,579.88

3L4.79

13,036.72

512.50

13.79

2,297.L5

68.94
(13.7e)

35,064.40

21,724.56

(16.03)

sr.g+

37,857.95

68.94

2L,756,49

s26.39 2,352.30 56,788.96 15.91 59,683.74

Statutory ReserYe

Statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under Section 45 lC of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934, Accordingly an

amount representing 2Oo/o of Profit for the period is transferred to the fund for the year.

Retained Eamings
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This

reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Equity tnstruments through Other Comprehensive lncome

This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value

through Other Comprehensive lncome, net of tax. The same shallbe transferred to retained earnings when those instruments are

disposed off.
Financiat lnstruments through Other Comprehensive lncome

This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of preference instruments measured at fair value

through Other domprehensive lncome, net of tax. The same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those instruments are

disposed off.

ln terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For D. K. Chhaier & Co.

Chartered Accountonts

Firm Registration No, 304138E

Atish shah

Portner
Membership No.062880

Place : Kolkata

Date :30th June,202l

Subhas Jajoo

Chairman

DIN:- 00429371

Ashish Kedla

Monoger and CFO

T.K. Bhattacharya
Director

DIN:- 00711665

G.S Mohta
Compony secretqry
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.ST MARCH ,2021.

1. Corporate lnformation

Western lndia Commercial Company Limited ("the Company") is a public company limited by shares,

incorporated on 13th August 1928 and domiciled in lndia. lts shares are listed on the Calcutta Stock

Exchange (CSE). The Company is carrying on business as a "Non-Banking Financial Company" (NBFC).

The Company is engaged mainly in investment in shares in securities & financial activity. The

Company is registered with Reserve Bank of lndia as NBFC. The Company's registered office is 21,

Strand Road Kolkata - 700 001.

2, Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd

AS) notified under section 133 read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

as amended from time to time, and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act").

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March,20t9, the Company prepared its

financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the

Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(lndian GAAP or previous GAAP). The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021are
prepared in accordance with lnd AS. The date of transition to lnd AS is 1st April,2019.

b. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an accrual

method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

value/ amortised cost. (Refer note 3.3 below). The financial statements are presented in lndian

Rupees (lNR) which is also its functional currency.

3. STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

3.1. Recognition of interest income

lnterest income for all financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) is

recognised using the contractual interest rate.

3.2. Recognition of Dividend !ncome

Dividend income (including from lnvestments measured at FVTOCI) is recognised when the

Company's right to receive the payment is established. This is established when it is probable that

the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.

3.3 Financial !nstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets -

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition

of the financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at

fair value th;ough profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NorES To rHE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS FoR THE vEAR ENDED 3i.t' MARCH ,202L

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
o Debt lnstruments at Amortized CosU

o Debt lnstruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI);

e Debt lnstruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

o Equity lnstruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVOCI),

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recogniti6n, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business modelfor managing financial assets,

o Debt lnstruments ot Amortized Cost:A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both

the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows; and

o The contractualterms of the financialasset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest rate (ElR) method.

Debt lnstruments at FVOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVOCI if both of the following

conditions are met:

o The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and

selling the financial assets; and

o The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains gr losses arising on

remeasurement recognized in Other Comprehensive lncome. However, the interest income,

losses & reversals, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. lnterest calculated using the EIR (Effective Rate lnterest) method is recognized in

the Statement of Profit and Loss as investment income.

Meosured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument,

which does not meet the criteria for categorization as amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as

FVTPL. ln addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise

meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL

category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Equity lnstruments measured at FVOCI: All equity investments in scope of lnd AS - 109 are

measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For

all other. equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in Other

Comprehensive lncome subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election

on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH ,2021,

irrevocable. ln case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then allfair

value changes on the instrument are recognized in the Other Comprehensive lncome, There is

no reclassification of the amounts from Other Comprehensive lncome to profit or loss, even on

sale of investment. Dividends on investments are credited to profit or loss,

o Equity lnvestments: lnvestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost

less accumulated impairment, if any.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the

cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially allthe risks

and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of

financial assets is impaired. lnd AS - L09 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a

loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/ or all

trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets,

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or

at an amount equalto the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has

increased significantly since initial recognition'

(ii) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at

fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable

transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings including bank

overdrafts and derivative financial instruments

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is

designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value ahd

net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss'

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate lnterest) method. Gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate lnterest)

amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium

on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included

as finance costs in profit or loss.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH ,2027

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on

substantially different terms, orthe terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand, term deposits with original maturity
of less than three months from the date of acquisition. Term deposits held with bank, with original
maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months is a part of bank balance other
than cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered an

integral part of the Company's cash management,

3.5, Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with these willflow to the Company and the cost

of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and

when incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE, outstanding at each reporting date are shown under

other non-financial assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for its intended use

at each reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress,

Subsequent expenditure related to the asset are added to its carrying amount or recognised as a

separate asset only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously

assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and

maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in

other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
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3.6. Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on written down value method (WDV) to
write down their residual values over their estimated useful life specified in Schedule ll of the

Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, Changes in the

expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as

appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

3.7. lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment,

based on internal/external factors. lf any such indication exists, then an impairment review is

undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated as the hlgher of fairvalue less costs of disposal

and the asset's value in use.

3.8. Employee Beneflts Expenses

3.8.1. Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-teim employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the

services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the

service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences,. which are

expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders

the related service.

3.8.2. Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays

specified monthly contributions to Provident Fund. The Company's contribution is recognized as an

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the

related service.

3.9. Taxes

lncome tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

3.9.1 Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year under the lncome Tax Act, L961. Current tax

assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the

Balance Sheet date.

3.9.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company's financial statements except when the

deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or liability
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in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable

profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax

rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,

based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance

Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will

be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each

reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable

profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there

is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset

is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the

Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period'

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same

relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome or directly in Equity, in which

case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other

Comprehensive lncome or directly in Equity respectively'

3.10. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and assets

provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the

controlof the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in

extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be

measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence

in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the entity.
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3.11. Earnings per Share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares,

3.12. Cash-flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash

receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing

activities of the Company are segregated,

3.13 USE OF ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ADJUSTMENT

The preparation of the financialstatements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting

period end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current

events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods

affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed in the

paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful Economic Lives ond lmpairment oJ Other Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment

including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and

technological advances).

(PPE) is based on a number of factors

other economic factors (such as known

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE at the end of each reporting date and any changes could

affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company.also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment if there are

events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be

recoverable. ln assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to

significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes in regulatory

environment are taken into consideration.

(ii) Conti n ge ncies a nd Com m itme nts
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ln the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other
claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable
estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best
estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the
financialstatements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the
Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's financial
position or profita bility.

(iii) Fair Volue Meosurements ond Voluotion Processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. ln estimating the fairvalue of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third
party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. lnformation about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

(iv) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Corried Forwqrd Tqx Losses and Unused Tqx Credit

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on air assessment of the
probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be

utilised. ln addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits.
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NOTE 4r CASH & CASH EQUIVAIENT

Particular As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Cash on Hand

Balances with Banks

a) in current accounts

b) in fixed deposit (maturing within a period of three months)

2.0t

18.40

s67,00

2,01

3.70

587.41 5.71,

NOTE 5r- BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EeUTVALENT

Instrument

Share

Cropscience LTD.

Dart Express Ltd.

Bosch Ltd.

Fort Gloster lndustries
Limited

Foseco lndia Ltd.

Consumer & healthcare
Ltd.

Hindustan Uniliver

HDFC Bank Ltd.

Maruti Suzuki india Ltd.

NBI lndustrial Finance Co,

10

10

10

0

10

10

878

,.,00

t7250

l6ooool

21,.

55.2

337.

156.48

4,290
3,750

4,009

830

3,700

17,250

t48.26
82.46

376.67

19.95

31.89

243.35

7(2)

10

5

Particular As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020
uepusrt5 Imarunng after period ot three months) 10.00 10 00

10.00 10,00

NOTE 6r LOAN

Parti cu lar As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020
,dI r9 DOqY Lorpoartg
-Tanushree Logistics Pvt Ltd

100.00

100.00

NOTE 7: INVESTMENT

Particulars As at 31st March,2O2l As at 31st March, 2020
lnvestment measured at FVTPL

i) Mutual funds
lnvestment measured at FVOCI

i) Preference Shares

ii) Equity Shares

iii) Debentures

Total

lnvestment outside lndia
lnvestment in lndia

251,.96

206.51

61,164.03

200.00

366.61

244.12

36,937.91

200.00
6L,822.50 37,748.63

61,,822.50 37 ,7 48.63

7,1 Details of investments are as follows :-

Mutual funds

Particulars Face Value
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Units Amount Units Amount

HDFC Arbitrage Fund

HDFC Overnight Fund

UTI Arbitrage Fund -Div

Payout

UTI Overnight Fund- Regular
growth Plan

L0

1000

L0

1000

s,oso

3,545

152.93

99.04

s,t7,956
2,509

4,75,757

3,545

1.20.46

7 4.1,5

75.84

96.16
Total 251.96 366.61

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st

Orient Cement
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Procter Gamble Hygiene

Ithcare Ltd.

Ltd.

lndia Ltd,

SBI Card & Payment Service

Ltd.

Shree Cement ltd.
Shree Synthetic Limited
United Spirits Ltd.

Whirlpool of lndia Ltd.

Zee Entertainment
Enterprise Ltd.

10

10

10

10

L0

2

10

0

2006s0

221

59,L22,33

t25.46
84,05

1,159

306

2,00,6s0

22,550
3,775

tL9.02

0.11

1.89

35,206.75

109.2 8

68.66

Unquoted (Fully Paid-Up)
Buildhome Pvt. Ltd,

astern lnvestments Ltd.

Karmayog Properties Pvt.
Ltd.

Ramgopal Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

Shree Cement Marketing
Ltd.

Su ryadewata Properties Pvt.

Ltd,

Syngenta lndia Ltd.

The Kamla Company Ltd.

The Marwar Textiles
(Agency) Pvt. Ltd.

Shree Cement East Bengal

Foundation

L0

10

10

10

10

L0

100

10

100

1.0

13,000
!2,456

1,13,000

35,000

9,000

5,900

56,t25

100

1,000

1s9.85
232.83

123,00

12.29

1.58

6.19

12.9s

0.71

0.10

13,000
12,456

L,13,000

35,000

9,000

s,800

30
56,12s

100

138.48
232.83

L24.25

72.24

1.66

6.19

0.29

t2.95

0.71

Preference Shares

Quoted (Fully Paid-Up)
7.8% Kamarhatti Jute Mills
Ltd,

0.1% Sree Rayalseema

Alkalies & Allied Ch. Ltd,

Zee Entertainment
Enterprise Ltd, NCPS

100

10

4 35,82,500 68.07 35,82,500 105.68

TOTAL 68.07 105.68

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 3lst March, 2020
Units Amount Units Amount

unquoreo (Fuily Patd-up,
Cem Logistics Pvt Ltd

Tanushree Logistics Pvt. Ltd.

100

100

90,000

19,480

90.00

48.44

90,000

19,480

90.00

48.44
IOTAL 138.44 L38.44

Debentures
Unquoted (Fully Pald-Up)
Ramgopal lndustries Pvt,
I i.l 100 2,00,000 200.00 2,00,o00 2 00,00

NOTE 8:-OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particular As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

lnterest accrued on Bank Deposits
lnterest Receivable on Loans

Dividend Receivable on lnvestments
Advance to Employees

Advance to lnvestment

3.96

3,98

0.51

0.00

0.07

L.23

8.60

. 8.45 9.90

e1
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WESTERN lNDIA COMMERCIAT COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Flnanclal Statement for the year Ended 31st MARCH,2021
NOTE 9:-CURRENT TAX ASSETS

Partlcular As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Advance Tax

Less: Provision for Tax
342,53

(33s.70)
6n? /l1)

NOTE 10:- OTHER FtNANCtAL LtABtLtTtES

Particular As at 31st March,202L As at 31st March, 2020
vurEr rdydl,tE-ror Expenses

Advance from customer
1..14

0.00
1..19

1,14 t.79

NOTE 11:- PROVISIONS

Particular As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, Z02O

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets 0.27 0.27
0.27 0.27

Balance As At 1st April,2019

Provision Created

Balance as at 31st March 2020
Provision Utilised
Provision Reversed

Provision Created

Balance As At 3l,st March,Z]2t

Particular As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

I 

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- On Fair value Gain of investment (FVTOCI)

- On Fair value Gain of investment (FVTpL)
-LTCG Brought forward Losses

Deferred Tax Assets
-On MAT credit

-On Business Loss Carried forward

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

2,792.29

L.22

2,793,51

53.47

8.20

61.68

2,731.84

NOTE 13:- OTHER NON-FtNANCtAL LIABtLtTtES

Particular As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Statutory Dues 0.20 0.37

0.20 0.37

+.

Particular Provision for Leave Silary
Provision for Standard

Assets

1,.47

t.-47
o:08

0.20

0.27

o.2l
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Notes to Finan'cial statement for the year Ended 3r.st March,2021

NOTE ITEQUITY SHARE CAPITAT

14.1 The reconclllatlon of Equlty Shares outstandlng at the beglnnlng and at the end ofthe year

L4.2Terms/ rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100/- per share ( previous year Rs,100/- each ) . Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. Dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval
of the shareholders in the ensuing AGM, ln the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
any of the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the no, of equity shares
held by them.

14'3 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares and of Equity share capital amount outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the Year

14.4 Details of Shareholders

14'5 No shares have been alloted during the period of 5 years immediately preceeding 30th June, 2020 pursuant to contracts
without payment being received in cash or by way of bonus shares and there has been no buyback during the said period.

Partlcular As at 3lst March,
2021

As at 31st March,
2020Authorised:

35,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each (previous year: 35,000)
lssued:

18,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each (previous year:L8000)

Subscribed & Fully Paid :

18,000 Equity shares of Rs, 100/- each fully paid up (previous year:1g000)

35,00

18.00

18.00

35.00

18. 00

18.00
18.00 18.00

Particular ln Number Amount
As at 31st March, 2020
As at 31st March,202t

18,000

18,000
18.00

18.00

more than 5% shares in the

Name
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

No. of
Shares held

% holding No. of Shares held % holding

Shri Harimohan Bangur

Asish Creations Pvt Ltd

The Oriental Fire & General lnsurance Co. Ltd.

Shree Capital Services Ltd,

Tanushree Logistics Pvt, Ltd.

NBI lndustrial Finance Co. Ltd.

2000

3555

2000

4425

2475

2705

17.L1%

L9.75%

L1,.77%

24.58%

L3.75%

Lt.69%

2,000

3,555

2,000

4,425

2,475

2,L05

tt.1.1%

19.75%

tt.tL%

24,58%

13,75%

1.t.69%

+t



WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAT COMPANY IIMITED
Notes to Financial statement for the year Ended 3lst March,2021
NOTE 15: OTHER EQUIW

Copitol Reserve

This reserve relates to forfeiture of shares.

Securities Premium

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the companies Act,
2013.

Statutory Reserve

statutory Reserve represents the Reserve Fund created under section 45 lc of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934, Accordingly anamount representing 20% of Profit for the period is transferred to the fund for the year,

Retained Earnings

This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the companyand effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This
reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the companies Act, 20i.3,

Equity lnstruments through Other Comprehensive lncome
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive lncome, net of tax. The same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those instruments are
disposed off.

Cummulative Realised Gain Sale

F i no ncial I 4stru me nts th rou g h Othe r Co m preh en s ive I ncome
This reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of preference instruments measured at fair
value through Other Comprehensive lncome, net of tax. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in oCl are reclassified to
the statement of profit and loss.

As at 31st March,
202L

Equity lnstruments Through OCI

Add:- Foir Value Gain/(Loss) during the year (Net of Tox)
Closing Bolonce

Finonciol lnstruments Through OCI

:- Foir Volue Gain/(Loss) during the yeor (Net of Tox)
:- Reclossified to Consolidoted Statement of profit ond Loss

512,60

73.79
449.64

62.96
526.39

2,297.L5

68.94
-13.79

512,60

2,045.32

374.79
-62.96

2,352.30

2,878.69

35,064.40

21",724.56

2,297.t5

2,809.75

38,090.99
-3,016.49

56,798.96

-16,03

31,93

0

35,064.40

4.04
-20.07

on of lnstrument
rarucutar

Realised Gain
Opening Balance

Realised Gain of 18-19
Realised Gain of 19-20
Realised Gain of 20-21

Closing Balance

(43.4s1

36.20

tL,305.2I
L47.0t

Ll,444.96

+2-

Particulars As at 31st March,
2020

15.90 - 16.03

59,583.74 37,959
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Notes to Flnanclal Statement for the Year Ended 31st MARCH,2021

NOTE 16:. TNTEREST TNCOME

Partlcula rs
Year Ended 31st March,

?o?1
Year Ended 31st

Marnh. ?O7O

Interest lncome

on Loan

on Fixed Deposits with Bank

1,56

4.83

1,.32

1.37

6.39 2.69

NOTE 17:- DIVIDEND INCOME

Particulars Year Ended 31st March,
2021

Year Ended 31st
March, 2020

Dividend lncome I 22.94

-

L---------------

33s,sB

335 58

NOTE 18:- NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGE

Particulars Year Ended 3lst March,
)i)1

Year Ended 31st
Marrh 2O2O

Change in Fair Value of investment (FWPL) | 6j66

L--------------!&
0.15

0,15

NOTE 19:- NET GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENT

Particu la rs
Year Ended 31st March,

2021

Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Mutual Fund 2.63

2.63

NOTE 2O:. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Partlculars
Year Ended 31st March,

2f)21
Year Ended 31st

March,2020
Salaries and Allowances

G ratu ity

Leave Salary

Staff Welfare Expenses

17.-7L

0.15

9,2s

1.,23

0.07

0.11

77.86 10.66

NOTE 21:. OTHER EXPENSE

Particulars
Year Ended 31st March,

)o)1
Year Ended 31st

M:rch- 2O2O

Rent

Rates and Taxes

CSR Expense (Note-21.1)

Goods & Services Tax

Depository Charges

Postage & Telephone
Printing and Stationery
Advertisement
Directors sitting Fee

Legal and Professional

Custodial Fees

Listing Fees

Payments to Auditors

For - Statutory Audit
For - Tax Audit Fees

For other Services

Security Tra nsaction Tax

Provision for Standard Assets

Miscellaneous Expenses

0.11

0.03

o.20

o.L2

1.O2

o.27

1.10

1.74

0.30

0.16

0.06

0,03

0,48

0.09

0.11

0.05

10.45

0.23

0.10

0.00

0.60

0.19

L.28

0.88

0.38

0,30

0.16

0.06

0.44

0.20

0,16

5.64 15.60

+3



21.1 Detalls of CSR

Pa rticu la rs 2020-2t 20t9-20

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the Year

(b) Amount spent during the Year

L0.40

10.45

WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Flnanclal Statement for the Year Ended 31st MARCH,2021

NOTE 22! TAX EXPENSE

(i) Amount recognised in profit or loss

(ii) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
The tax (charge)/ credit arising on income and expenses recognised ln other comprehensive income is as follows:

(iii) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

(iv) The tax rate used for the year 2020-27 and 2019-20 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 26.00% 125% + education cess @
4%) payable on taxable profits under the lncome Tax Act, 1961.

(v) Movements in deferred tax (liabilities) / assets

The Company has accrued significant amounts of deferred tax. The majority of the deferred tax liability represents accelerated tax relief for
thedepreciationofproperty,plantandequipmentand netoflossescarriedforwardandunusedtaxcreditintheformof MATcredits
carried forward. Significant components of Deferred tax (assets) & liabilities recognized in the standalone statements of financial position as

follows:

Particular 31st March, 2021 31st March 2020

Current tax:

lncome tax for the year

Charge/(credit) in respect of current tax for earlier years

Total current Tax

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
MAT Credit availed

Charge in respect of deferred tax for earlier years

Total Deferred Tax

Total tax expenses

6.s0

6.50

(6.ee)

(s3.47)

(60.46)

(60,46)

items that will not be reclossified to profit or loss
Equity lnstruments measured through OCI

items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Particu la r 31st March, 2021 31st March 2020

lhe income tax expense
Profit before tax
ncome tax expense calculated @ 26%
Expenses disallowed
Effect of tax relating to expenses allowed on payment basis
Effect of tax relating to uncertaln tax positions
Effect of income not taxable
lax due to lnd AS adjustments
lax at differential rate
ncome tax relating to earlier years
3ther differences

lax exDenses

14.98
3.89
0.13

(60.46)

(4'.021

374.79
81.85

6.83
(0 38)

(87.29)
(0,68)

(3.17)

(2.8s)

Particulars
Falr Value of

Flnanclal lnstrumenl
MAT Credit
entltloment

Proporty, Plant &
Equipment

Employee bonerits Total

As at 1st Aprll, 2019
Charged/ (credited) to i
- profit or loss

- other comprehensive
As at 31st March, 2020
Charged/ (credited) to :

- profit or loss
- other comprehensive
As at 31st March. 2021

lL7.21)
61/l 7R

(s3,47) (70,6s)
614 7R

597.56 (53,47) 544.09

+)
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Flnanclal Statement for the year Ended 31st MARCH,2O2I

NOTE 23:. OTHER COMPREHENSTVE TNCOME

EqUITY SHARE

PREFERENCE SHARE

NOTE 24IEPS

NOTE 25I.SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has only one line of business i.e. Non Banking Financial activities. There are no separate reportable segments as per lnd AS
108.

NOTE 26:- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTTON

l) Name of Related party

a)

b)

Related Party Transaction during the year

Key M o na g e m e nt P e rson n e I

Mr. Ashish Kedia

lnvesting Company

Shree Capital Services Limited

Deginotion

Manager and CFO

Particulars 2020-2L 2019-20
Realised gain/(loss)

Uhrea lised gain/(loss)
1,47.0L

24,367.74
36.20

-3,01,6,47

24,5L4,75 -2,980.27

Pa rticulars 2020-2L 20t9-20
Realised gain/(loss)

Unrea lised gain/(loss)
34.03 (20,07';

34.03 (20.07)

Earnings Per Share (EPS) Year Ended 31st March,
202L

Year Ended 31st
March,2020

Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of profit and Loss

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EpS

Weighted Average potential Equity Shares
Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares
Basic Earnings per Shares (Rs.)

Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.)

Face Value per Equity Share (Rs.)

68.94

o.2

o.2

383,00

383.00

100.00

314.79

o.2

0.2

1,748,84

t,748.84
100.00

Particular Year Ended.3lst March,
2027

Year Ended 31st
March.2o2o

a) Remuneration

Mr, Pankaj Sureka

Mr. Ashish Kedia

b) Rent

Shree Capital Services Limited

15.91

0.11

8,02

2.L6

0,11

NOTE 27-DISCLOSURE WITH REGARD TO DUES TO MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMATL ENTERPRISES

Based on the information available with the company, there is no supplier in the aforesaid company. Thus no disclosures relating to
principal amounts unpaid as at the year ended 31st March,2021, together with interest paid /payable are required to be furnished.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial statement for the year Ended 3lst MARCH,zozL

NOTE 28:-CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value

NOTE 29:-RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies & procedures and
internal financial controls aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key
financial risks (such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its
business operations as well as its investing and financing activities.
Accordingly, the Company's risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such rlsks are
managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in
compliance with applicable regulations, lt also seeks to drive accountability in this regard.

The Company's financial liabilities includes Other Financial Liabilities- comprising of general expenses, The
Company's principal financial assets include lnvestments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Financial
Assets that are derived directly from its operations.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when
due' Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Company maintains sufficient cash and liquid
investments available to meet its obligation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn
borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The management
also considers the cash flow projections and level of liquid assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis.

Risk Exposure arising from Mitigation
Market Risk -
Securities Price

lnvestments in equity securities Continuous monitoring of performance
of investments.

Credit Risk Failure of either counterparty to abide by the
terms of any financial contract.

Rigorous loan approval along with
strong NPA monitoring and collection
startegy.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year Ended 31st MARCH,2O21

NOTE 30:-DISCLOSURE ON FtNANC|AL TNSTRUMENTS
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial
statements.

of Financial lnstruments

Pa rticulars Note As at 31st

March, 2021
As at 31st March,

2020
I rrnanctat ASseIs
I

la) Measured at Amortised Cost

I i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

I ii) otf,"r Bank Balances

I iii) Other Financial Assets

I

b) Measured at Fair Value through OCI (FVOC|)

i) lnvestment in Equity Shares

ii) lnvestment in Preference Shares
ii) lnvestment in Debenture

Sub-Tota I

c) Measured at Fair Value through profit and Loss (FWpL)
i) lnvestment in Mutual Fund

Total Financial Assets

Financial Llabllities
a) Measured at Amortlsed Cost
i) Other Financial Llabilities

Total Financial Liabillties

4

5

8

7

7

7

7

10

587.41

10.00

8.45

5.71,

10.00

9.90
605.86

61,164.03

206.s 1

200.00

25.6t

36,937.91

244.t2
200.00

61,570.54

251,.96

37,382.03

366,606
25L.96 366.61

62,428.06 37,773,94

L.1,4

L.L4092

3.,79

t.7946

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for whlch fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indlcation
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards.

Level 1: Level t hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices,
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. lf all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3,

(ii) Valuation Methodology
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

'the fair value of invetsment in quoted equity shares and mutual funds is measured at quoted price or NAV.
o the fair value of level 3 instruments is valued using inputs based on information about market participants assumptions and other data that are
availa ble.
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAT COMPANY TIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st MARCH,2021

Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair value - recurring Fair Value Measurements

Particulars
As at 31st March,2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Level 1 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3

Finoncial Assets

lnvestment in Equity lnstruments

60,6t4.52 549.508 36,408.30 529.61

Value

(iv) Significant Estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques, The Compdny uses its

judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting

period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.

NOTE 31r-

Due to outbreak of COVID 19 globally and in lndia, the Company's management has made initial assessment of likely adverse impact on business and

financial risks, and believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature. The management does not see any medium to long term risks in the

Company's abilityto continue as going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due.

Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developmen.ts to identify significant uncertainties relating to revenue in

future periods.

NOTE 32r
Particulars required under Paragraph 18 of the Master Direction Non-Banking Financial Company- Non- Sytemically lmportant Non-Deposit taking

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are given in the Annexure appended hereto,

NOTE 33:-

The previous year figures are reclassified where considered necessary to confirm to this year's classification.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ln terms of our report attached.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 304138E

Atish Shah

Portner
Membership No. 062880

Place: Kolkata

Date : 30th June,202L

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Subhas Jajoo

Choirmon

DIN:- 00429371

Ashish Kedia

Monoger ond CFO

T. K. Bhattacharya
Director

DIN:- 00711"665

G.S Mohta

Company Secretory
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WESTERN INDIA COMMERCIAL COMPAIIY LIMITED
ANNEXURE

(Refened to in Not€ 32 of th6 Flnancial Statements)

S.CHPDIJLE TO TH,E BALAN9P SI,{E-Er OF $ NPI.I:DryPO$JT TAKING NON-BANI<INQ FINANCIAL COMpANy

PARTICULARS

Liabilities side:

(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paitl:

(a) Debentures : Secured

: Unsecured
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)

(b) Defened Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f Other Loans-

(Rs in Lakhs)
As on 3I.03.2021

Amount
Outstanding

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Amount
Overdue

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Assets side:

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
Iother than those included in (4) belowl:
(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

(3) Breakup ofLeased Assets and stock
on hire and other assets

counting towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

Current Investments:
1. Quoted;

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please speci|l)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Goverrunent Securities
(v) Others (Please speci$,)

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

245,01

NIL
NIL

+1



Long Term investments:
1. Quotedl

(i) Share: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please speciff)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemment Securities

(v) Others (Please specifu)

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed

as in (2) and (3) above :

1300.76
50.08

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

187.85

109.53

200.00

NIL
NIL
NIL

Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the sarne group

(c) Other related parties

NIL
NIL
N]L
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL2. Other than related

Total NIL NIL NIL
(6) Investor group-wise classification of all
investments (current and term) in shares and securities and

Category Market Value /
Break up/

or fair value or NAV

Book Value

OIet of Provisions)

L Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

NIL
NIL
NIL

61,822.50

NIL
NIL
NIL

2,093.22

Total 6t,822.50 2,093.22

(7) Other information
Particulars

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

Amount

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

Assets acquired in satisfaction ofdebt

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL

(ii)

(iii)

As per our Report of even date attached herewith.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 304138E

Atish Shah

Partner
Membership No. 062880

Place : Kolkata
Date :30th June,2021

Subhas Jajoo
Chairman
DIN.- 00429371

Ashish Kedia
Manager and CFO

T.K,Bhattacha rya
Director
DrN.- 00711665

G.S Mohta
Company Secrelar.\t
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